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question therefore was as to the boundaries of
the respective fishings, and whether the portion
of the island on which the gallows and bridge
bad been erected by the defender was or was not
within his boundaries. The Court at first de-
cided that the portion of the island in question
was not within the defender’s boundaries, and
ordered the bridge to be removed, but on advising
a reclaiming petition, the Court seems to have
found that the island was within the defender’s
boundaries, and that he was entitled to maintain
the erections he had set up. It was alleged by
the pursuer that the erections were injurious to
his rights of fishing, but neither the report of the
case nor the pleadings show what view the Court
took on this part of the case. The Salmon-Fish-
ing Statutes were not at all referred to. And it
therefore appears to me that the case cannot be
regarded as an authority in the present case.

1 may refer your Lordships to the case of
Viscount Arbuthnott, &c. v. Scott and Others, de-
cided in this House on May 25, 1802 (4
Paton’s Appeals, 337). In that case the ap-
pellants were proprietors of salmon-fishings
in the North Esk. Further down the river, and
about two miles from its mouth, the respondents
were proprietors of mills on either side of the
river. And at this place the respondent Mr
Scott had also a right to a salmon-fishing, which
he was entitled to exercise either by means of
cruives or by net and coble. There had been
much litigation in regard to a dam-dyke for sup-
plying the mills with water, and a cruive-dyke
immediately adjoining ; and in consequence of a
judgment of this House in 1772 Mr Scott could
no longer use the cruive-dyke as a means of pre-
venting the passage of the salmon up the river,
and therefore he resolved to abandon that dyke
in order to furnish a pretence for erecting another
dyke. - Accordingly, some years afterwards he
resorted to the plan of erecting a new dam-dyke.
This erection proved much more objectionable to
the fishing than the former from its peculiar
construction, it being made of a heap of loose
stones, so placed together as to allow the flow of
water to filtrate through them, at the same time
preventing the possibility of the river from flow-
ing over the top. An action of declarator was
therefore raised by Lord Arbuthnott, concluding
to have it found and declared that the respon-
dents ‘“ had no right to erect said bulwark of the
extraordinary dimensions above described, and
therefore that these new erections ought to be
demolished and the said bulwark altogether
altered in its dimensions, and of new constructed
in such a manner and with such openings or
gaps as to admit the free passage of salmon at all
times up the river.” The Court of Session
assoilzied the defenders from the conclusion of
the action. But this House, on appeal, reversed
the judgment of the Court of Sessiou, and found
““that the pursuers, as proprietors respectively
of salmon-fisheries in the river of North Esk, are
entitled to have as free access of salmon to their
several fisheries as can be had consistently with
the rights which others have in the lower parts
of the river.” And the House remitted the same
back to the Court of Session to have the dyke
altered.

Considerable further litigation followed on this
remit in the Court of Session, but ultimately the
Court found that the dam-dyke in question must
be of new constructed in conformity to a report

by an engineer, by and at the expense of Mr
Scott, and be thereafter maintained and sup-
ported by him. This judgment was appealed
against to this House at the instance of Mr Scott,
but was affirmed (5 Paton, 750).

I think this case shows that wherever there is
in fact what amounts to an obstruction to the
passage of salmon, in the sense of Lord West-
bury’s judgment in the case of Hay, it will be
ordered to be removed.

On the whole, therefore, I am of opinion that
the operations complained of in the present case °
exceeded what were necessary for repairing the
damage done to the island, and restoring the re-
spondent’s fishings to the condition in which
they were before the erection of the Skibo em-
bankment. I am of opinion that it is proved
that the embankment in its present condition is
an obstruction to the ‘ free and uninterrupted”
passage of salmon up the river, and that it ought
to be lowered to the height of the original bank
of the island; and that so far as it extends be-
yond the end of the island as it existed before the
Skibo embankment was formed, it should be en-
tirely removed.

Interlocutors appealed from affirmed, and ap-
pealed dismissed, with costs.

Counsel for Appellant—Balfour— Mackintosh.
Agent—W. A. Loch, Solicitor.

Counsel for Respondent — Lord Advocate
(Watson)—Benjamin, Q.C.—Johnston. Agents
—Markby, Wilde, & Burra, Solicitors.

Monday, April 15,

SMITHS ¥. CHAMBERS TRUSTEES.

(Before Lord Hatherley, Lord O’Hagan, Lord
Blackburn, and Lord Gordon.)

(A4nte, Nov. 9, 1877, p. 58.)

Trust — Succession — Vesting — Arrestment — Power
of Trustees to Postpone Term of Payment and
Restrict Right of Beneficiaries.

A truster directed his trustees to hold the
residue of his estate for behoof of his child-
ren ‘‘under the exceptions and modifications
to be afterwards stated,” declaring that the
shares should vest at his death and be pay-
able six months thereafter. He gave his
trustees power to postpone payment so long
as they should see fit, and to restriet the
right of any child to a liferent, creating a
new trust if necessary to effect that end. The
trustees paid certain portions of the capital and
the whole of the income of his share to one of
the children. ‘Thereafter certain of his
creditors arrested his share of the residue in
the hands of the trustees, and raised an
action of forthcoming. After this action
was raised, the trustees executed a deed
whereby they restricted the right of the
beneficiary to a liferent, and declared his
share of the residue to be vested in them-
selves as an alimentary fund for behoof of
the child in liferent and his children in fee.
Held (rev. the judgment of the majority of
the First Division) that the right to his
ghare had vested in the beneficiary subject to
the exercise of the powers conferred on the



542

The Scottish Luw Ilteporter.

[Smims v. Chambers® Tra.,
April 15, 1878.

trustees ; that the arresting creditors took
the right tantum et tale as it was in him ; and
that therefore the trustees were not barred
from executing such a deed of restriction by
the arrestments that had been used.
Writ—Testing Clause— Expression of Granter’s Will.
Opinion per Lord Gordon (eontra unanimous
judgment of the First Division) that a sub-
stantial provision in a deed may competently
be inserted in the testing clause.

. The facts of this case and the terms of the docu-
ments out of which it arose will be found ante,
p. 58, of date November 9, 1877, 5 R. 97.

The trustees appealed. )

The question as to the insertion in a testing .

clause of a provision altering or controlling the
granter’s will as expressed in former parts of the
deed was not decided by the House of Lords, as
it was not necessary for the determination of the
ease,

At delivering judgment—

Lorp HareERLEY—My Lords, the appellants in
this case are the trustees under a testamentary
disposition of the late Dr Robert Chambers, one
of a well-known firm of publishers in Edinburgh,
and the respondents constitute a firm of share-
brokers at Sheffield, who claim to be creditors for
a sum of £2294, 1s. 10d. on account of principal
and interest due on three bills of exchange, and
£4 of costs, as against{ James Chambers, one of
the sons of the testator Dr Robert Chambers.
The respondents have by due process obtained
judgment as against James Chambers, their
debtor, and have proceeded to arrest in the hands
of the above trustees all funds belonging to
James Chambers, and by an action of furthcoming
and payment, commenced on the 17th of October
1876, sought to render available the arrested
funds for payment of their debts.

The debtor James Chambers became entitled
to an interest in the residuary estate of his late
father under the deed of disposition of which the
appellants are trustees, the nature of which must
be carefully examined with a view to the deter-
mination of the case raised by this appeal. The
Lord Ordinary, by his interlocutor of the 22d
February 1877, dismissed the action, but on a
reclaiming note being presented against that
decision, a majority of the Judges of the First
Division, by their interlocutor of the 8th of
November 1877, recalled the interlocutor of the
Lord Ordinary and decerned in favour of the
respondents to the full amount of their claim,
The present appeal is against such interlocutor of
the Judges.

The trust-disposition of Dr Chambers, dated
the 10th of November 1870, after appointing his
eldest son Robert Chambers and others (now
represented by the appellants) trustees for
executing the trusts of the deed, and making
several dispositions of property, disposed of the
residue in the following words:—* Lastly, in
regard to the residue of my means and estate
remaining after fulfilment of the foregoing
purposes of this trust, I appoint my trustees

" to hold, apply, pay, and convey the same, and
the interest and other annual produce there-
of, to and for behoof of the children of the
marriage between me and Mrs Anne Kirk-
wood or Chambers, now deceased, equally among
them, with the exception of my son the said

William Chambers, and with and under the excep-
tions and modifications to pe afterwards stated,
payable, in the case of such as are major, six
months after my decease, but in the case of my
said daughter Alice, on her obtaining majority or
being married, whichever of these events may
first happen, but only after the expiry of the said
six months, declaring that the whole provisions
in favour of my said children shall at my death
vest in those surviving me, and that the lawful
issue of any of my children who may have pre-
deceased me shall receive equally among them
the share which would have fallen to their
parents if alive, which share shall in all such cases
be held by my trustees in trust for such issue
while under age, and the interest, and also if my
trustees shall think proper the capital, or any part
thereof, shall be applied during their respective
minorities to their support and education, which
capital so far as not so applied shall be paid to
them at their respective majorities; but in case
there shall be no lawful issue aforesaid attaining
majority, then the share to which such issue
would have been entitled shall, so far as remain-
ing unapplied as aforesaid, belong to the sur-
vivors of my said children, equally among them
per stirpes, but excepting always from this
provision my son the said William Chambers,
and his issue. And notwithstanding the periods
above appointed for the payment of the shares
of the residue of my means and estate, I provide
and declare that it shall be lawful to and in the
power and option of my trustees, if they see
cause and deem it fit, to postpone as long as they
shall think it expedient to do so the payment
of the provisions or shares of residue herein-
before provided as aforesaid in the case of all or
any of my children or g=andchildren, and to apply
the interest or annual produce of the same
during the period of the postponement to or
for behoof of such children or grandchildren,
or by a deed under their hands to retain the
said provisions or any of them vested in their own
persous, or to vest the same in the persons of
other trustees (whom they are hereby authorised
to appoint) with all or any of the powers, privi-
leges, and exemptions belonging to themselves,
including the power of appointing factors, so
that my children and grandchildren or any of
them, as the case may be, may draw and receive
only the interest or other annual proceeds of
their respective provisions during their lives or
for such time as my trustees may fix, and that
the capital may be settled on or for behoof of
such children or grandchildren and their lawful
issue on such conditions and under such restric-
tions and limitations and for such uses as my
trustees in their discretion may deem most ex-
pedient, of which expediency and the time and
manner of exercising the powers and option

" hereby given they shall be the sole and final

judges.”

My Lords, James Chambers, the debtor, is one
of the children. Dr Chambers died in March
1874. The trustees appear to have realised the
property of the testator with the exception of
his business, and & paper has been put in, ad-
mitted by both sides to be correct, in which the
result of an examination of the trust-account
is set out. 'There appear to have been variations
in the income, owing tq the publishing business
being still carried on as a going concern.
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Up to the 1st June 1875 the trustees paid sums
of money from time to time to Mr James
Chambers considerably exceeding the amount of
income on his share, his share of income to that
date being stated as amounting to £2272, 6s. 3d.
and his total receipts to £4358, 19s. 7d., so that
£2086, 3s. 4d., the overpayment, is charged in
the above paper to capital. He was further paid
£474, 17s. 2d. for income up to the 38lst
March 1876, and £150 on account from that date
to the 6th of July 1876. On the 17th of October
1876 this action was raised, and on the 10th of
January 1877 the trustees, represented now by
the appellants, executed a trust-deed of that date,
which recited the main provisions of the testa-
mentary disposition, including the attesting part
of that instrument, and the provision contained
in the attesting clause as to the legacies being
alimentary and not arrestable, and further stating
that considering the payments already made to
James Chambers, and that his share of the estate
under their management was not more than was
required as a suitable alimentary provision for
himself and his family, they had deemed it fit to
retain the balance for the behoof of himself and
his children as authorised by the settlement, and
in manner after-mentioned they declare that the
share shall remain vested in them the trustees in
trust only for the behoof of James Chambers
during his life, and after his death for behoof of
his children (naming them), and that so long as
the said provisions shall be retained they shall
remain vested in the trustees, and James
Chambers or his children shali only be entitled to
receive the interest or other proceeds during his
and their lives, and that at such times and in
such proportions as they, the trustees, might deem
expedient. By a second trust-deed, dated 6th,
9th, and 10th July 1877, they again recited the
will, and expressly by this deed declared that the
share of James should be in trust for him in life-
rent for his liferent alimentary use, and after his
death for his children.

The respondents, the arresting creditors, seel
to obtain a decree of forthcoming to the extent
of the debt due to them in respect of the interest
and prineipal in the hands of the trustees under
Dr Chambers’ testamentary disposition at the
date of the process of arresting. The question is,
whether they are so entitled either as to principal
or interest moneys or any part thereof respectively?
The majority of the Lords of the First Division,
by their decision of the 9th of November 1877,
reversed the decree of the Lord Ordinary, and
directed payment to the respondents of £2294,
1s. 10d. and of £4, 6s. out of the share of James
Chambers and his children.

I will first consider what is the true comstruc-
tion of the testamentary disposition of Dr
Chambers as regards his residuary estate. I
think that it is carefully and anxiously worded, so
as to give the trustees the largest powers over
that residue until actual distribution of the re-
spective shares. They are to ‘“hold, apply, pay,
and convey the same and the interest thereof to
and for the behalf of” his children by his late
wife, equally among them, except his son William
Chambers, and with, under, and subject to the
exceptions and modifications to be afterwards
stated.

These modifications will apply to the whole
gift, and will modify the interest of every one of

the children in that gift. He declares the pro-
vision to be payable to such as are major six
months after his decease, but in the case of his
daughter Alice on her attaining majority or
being married, declaring that the whole provisions
in favour of his children should at his death be
vested in their surviving issue. He then makes
provisions for the issue of any child dying in his
lifetime to take their parent’s share, excepting his
son William’s issue.

Then follows the most important clause. He
declares that *‘notwithstanding the periods above
appointed for the payment of the shares of
residue of his moneys and estate, he provides and
declares that it shall be lawful to and in the power

*and option of his trustees, if they see cause and

deem it fit, to postpone, aslong as they shall think
it expedient to do so the payment of the provi-
sions or shares of residue therein provided in the
case of all or any of his children or grandchildren,
and to apply the interest or annual produce of
the same during the period of the postponement
to and for the behoof of such children or grand-
children.”

Now, my Lords, stopping here, we find a power
in the trustees overruling all directions for pay-
ment and vesting before given, and directing
them during the postponement to apply the
interest for the behoof of the children. This
must mean that the child is to have no control
over the fund at all When the trustees resolve on
postponement. If he could demand payment the
power of postponement could be pleaded, and if
any child were to take legal proceedings to enforce
payment into his own hands of the money, it ap-
pears to me that, if any meaning is to be given to
this clause it would be a good plea to an action
against the trustees for payment of the principal
and interest, and they might say—¢ We have post-
poned such payment to you personally, and
intend ourselves to apply the money for your be-
hoof.”

But the case does not rest there, for the trus-
tees may by the will either do this, or by a deed
under their hands may retain the provisions or
any of them vested in their own persons, or vest
the same in the persons of other trustees whom
they are authorised to appoint, so that the child-
ren and grandchildren or any of them, as the case
may be, will receive only the interest or other
annual proceeds of their respective provisions
during their lives or for such times as the trustees
may fix, and the capital may be settled on or for
behoof of such child or the grandchildren and
their lawful issue, on such conditions and under
such restrictions and limitations and at such
times and in such manner as the trustees may in
their discretion deem most expedient, of which
expediency and the time and manner of exercising
the powers and option thereby given they should
be the sole and final judges. Powers are also
given to the trustees for settling accounts as to
the partnership business in which Dr Chambers
was engaged with his surviving partners in wind-
ing-up the estate generally.

Now, what is the effect of these two clauses
together? It was said in argument before your
Lordships that the option was a single option
between two courses ; that the positive direction
was for vesting and payment to the children, but
that the trustees might postpone the payment and
retain the funds, paying the income to the bene-
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ficiaries or for their behoof, on the one hand, or
they might at their option execute a deed giving
a liferent only to the testator’s children or grand-
children, on the other, and that this option shonld
be declared and acted on once for all at the time
when payment became due, and this view seems
to have received some countenance in part of Lord
Deas’ judgment.

My Lords, it is an ordinary incident to a power
that it may, unless controlled by some provisions
of the instrument in which it,is contained, be
exercised at suitable periods as to portions of the
property until the subject-matter of the power is
exhausted, and here it seems to me a necessary
construction that the power should continue to

be exercised from time to time as required. The

testator evidently contemplated a discretion in
his trustees, for which reason he gives them the
option of retaining the moneys and applying them
with their own hands, as it were, to the use of
the children, or of executing a deed by which
they may appoint others to undertake the same
duty for the future; and though by such deed
the liferent is to be given to a child and the
principal to his issue, yet it may be given with
such restrictions and conditions and for such
uses as the trustees in their discretion may deem
most expedient, of which expediency and ‘‘the
time and manner of exercising the power and
option they are to be the sole and final judges.”

I do not know any form of words which could
more precisely confer on them and those who
might succeed to the trust the power at any
time of discharging their duty in the distribution
of the testator’s residue amongst his children and
their issue in the manner which they should
think proper. The scheme of the testamentary
disposition is this— either pay to my children and
grandchildren their shares (if they be of age), or
hold in your own hands the share of any of them
and apply it for his or her behoof instead of pay-
ing it to the child.

It appears to me that so long as the trustees
retain any part in their own hands they are
bound to employ it as they think best for the
legatee’s benefit, viz., either by paying it at any
time they think fit to thelegatee, or by paying it for
his behoof—that is, for his benefit—in such man-
ner and at such time as they may think proper.
This, by the law of Scotland, they could well do.

It will be noticed that in these observations I
do not refer to the clause of attestation and the
directions therein contained.

‘What, then, is the position of the trustees when
a creditor seeks to arrest the fund in their hands,
payment of which they have not yet made.
They hold it in trust for the legatee, but subject
to the powers conferred on them by the will.
And, with great respect, I conceiveit to be a lead-
ing misconception in the judgment of the Court
below that they have held that the arrestment
can in any way affect the powers of the trustees
even as the learned Judges have thought to the
extent of annihilating their trust.

Now, I understand, my Lords, the law of Scot-
land to be in no way different from that of Eng-
land with reference to the effect of an arrest of a
debtor’s interest in the hands of third parties.
It has been long settled in England that a judg-
ment creditor must take his debtor’s interest sub-
jeet to all charges and modifications to which it
is subject in the debtor’s own hands, or, as it is

called, ¢‘tantum et tale,” otherwise there would be
an act of the debtor conferring an interest on his
creditor which he could not acquire for himself.
The debtor James Chambers could not, I think,
in the case before us insist on payment to him-
self of any principal moneys or interest, the pay-
ment of which the trustees, under the powers
contained in the testamentary disposition, thonght
right to postpone, and for the same reason the
arresting creditor cannot make that demand. The
trustees might under-the will, if they thought fit,
pay any given creditor for necessaries, or take
any other course to them appearing advisable for
the benefit of the legatee, but could not be com-
pelled to pay it as the legatee may direct.

What I have said applies to the position of the
parties under the testamentary disposition alone,
but by the two subsequent deeds I think the
trustees have finally settled the disposal of the
shares by giving a liferent to the children and
making it an alimentary provision for them.

The maxim ““pendente lite nihil innovandum”
seems t0 me to have no place here. If I am cor-
rect in holding as I do that the trust-powers
could not be destroyed by the objects of them
becoming indebted, which indeed seems the time
at which the testator would have desired them to
be brought into action, then the trustees are not
innovating, but only exercising their right as con-
ferred upon them by their truster at their own
discretion.

It appears to me that under the ample terms of
the discretion so conferred they are at liberty to
withhold from James Chambers and from any
claiming under him the payment of either prin-
cipal or interest as they may think occasion re-
quires, and that by the operation of the deeds
they only limited this their power, which was
general as to the times and manner of its exercise,
as they themselves being sole judges conceived to
be expedient.

This view precludes the necessity of entering
upon the somewhat vexed question of law that
arises on the attestation clause of the testamentary
document. This was held unanimously by the
Court below to be incapable of being treated as a
provision of the deed. After the cases cited
before us as having been decided by this
House, I should have taken more time to consider
whether I could wholly acquiesce in the decision
of the Court in Scotland on this point, but, for
the reasons above-mentioned, I am of opinion that
the interlocutor of the First Division com-
plained of by this appesal should be reversed, and
that we should remit the case to the Court of
Session in order that they may assoilzie the de-
fendants from the conclusions of the action, with
expenses.

No question will arise as to income, since the
last payment, in the view I have taken, extends
both to income and principal till actual payment,
Neither can there be any doubt that the first of
the two deeds executed by the trustees, reciting
as it does what they at least supposed to be part
of the testator’s will as contained in the testa-
mentary clause, rendered the provision in liferent
thereby made itself alimentary. No authority
has established that the word ‘‘alimentary” must
be used, and in this case the machinery of the
testamentary disposition in effect empowers the
trustees to deal with the property as they think
best for the sole benefit of the legatees.
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I think, my Lords, that the appellants ought
to have from the respondents the costs of this
appeal.

Lorp O’HagaNn—My Lords, in this case there
is no controversy as to the facts, and they and
the documentary evidence have been so fully and
clearly stated by my noble and learned friend
that I shall not waste any time by detailing them
again,

The question is a8 to the effect of the arrest-
ment, and it must be determined by a considera-
tion of that proceeding in connection with the
trust-deed of Dr Robert Chambers, the answer of
his trustees to the third condescendence of the
respondents, the deed of January 1877, and the
deed of July 1877.

In the Courts below there seems to have been
some distinction taken between the extent of the
interests of the debtor and the creditor using
legal diligence, and some attempt to contend that
the right of the latter may be something different
from and higher than that of the former, but on
this point the judgment of Lord Shand seems to
me conclusive, and your Lordships are relieved
from the necessity of considering it at all by the
frank admission of the respondents’ counsel that
the creditor cannot take more than the debtor
had. 1If he have a vested property and an abso-
lute claim they will of course pass from him, but if
the property and the claim are subject to condi-
tions, and liable to be affected by the discretionary
action of other people, the creditor cannot escape
the fulfilment of the conditions or deny the effect
of that exercise of the discretion which would
have bound the debtor. We have therefore
simply to determine what was the nature of the
estate taken by James Chambers, and under the
testamentary deed, and what has been the opera-
tion upon it of the several acts of the respondents
to which I have referred.

The purpose of Dr Chambers in settling his
property appears to me manifest on the face of
the deed. He had an interest in a large publish-
ing business. He did not contemplate the imme-
diate or the speedy cessation of it. It has in
fact been continued for the benefit of his partners
and his family—1I suppose with changing fortune
—ag the amount of profit seems to have altered
from time to time. It was desirable that his
trustees should have such powers as would enable
them to maintain, to regulate, or to terminate it, as
might best promote the interests committed
to their care. Again, Dr Chambers had several
children, some of whom were of age, and some
were not. In settling his estate he plainly had in
view this possibility, that it might be proper to
deal with them differently according to the differ-
ent circumstances which might arise—to have re-
gard to their character, conduct, and necessities,
and to control the disposition of their several
portions in such a way as might most conduce
to the benefit of each. The present position of
the son with whose property this appeal is con-
versant demonstrates that the father had good
reason for such anticipations, and only exercised
a prudent forethought if he took care to guard
against the probable consequences of the folly or
improvidence or misfoxtune of his family.

These purposes seem to me as clearly indicated
by the passages of the trust-disposition which
have been read by my noble and learned friend as

VOL. XV.

if they had been in terms recited in the com-
mencement of it, It is our businéss from the
whole instrument to ascertain the real intention
of the settlor, and having done so to my own
satisfaction, I proceed to consider whether it
has been carried into effect by apt and sufficient
words.

After making various provisions for various
people in regard to the residue, the settlor ap-
points the trustees ¢ to hold, apply, pay, and con-
vey the same and the interest and annual produce
thereof to and for the behoofof the children equally”
(with one exception), ‘‘payable in the case of
such as are major” (of whom James Chambers
was one) ‘‘six months after his decease,” with a
declaration thdt the whole provisions in favour of
the children shall at his death vest in those sur-
viving him. But all this is to be ““with and
under the exceptions and modifications to be
afterwards stated,” and those exceptions and
modifications are very clearly expressed, and
without limit in their operation on the whole
trust-estate. He had made the portions payable
six months after his death, and expressly provided
for the vesting of them ; but he goes on to say
that ¢ notwithstanding the periods above ap-
pointed for the payment of the shares of the
residue,” it shall be in ‘‘the power and option” of
the trustees, if they see cause and deem it fit, to
postpone as long as they shall think it expedient
to do so ” the payment of those shares ‘‘in the
cese of all or any” of his children or grand-
children, and to apply the interest or annual pro-
duce of the same during the period of postpone-,
ment ‘“to or for the behoof of such children or
grandchildren.” And then he declares that the
trustees at their discretion may retain the shares
““vested in their own persons,” or vest them in
other trustees whom he authorises them to nomi-
nate, with all their own powers, including the
power of appointing factors, so that his children
or grandchildren or any of them may receive only
the interest of their respective provisions during
their lives, or for such term as the trustees may
fix, the capital to be settled on them or for their
behoof on such conditions and under such re-
strictions and limitations and for such uses ‘as
the trustees may deem expedient,” of which ex-
pediency and the time and manner of exercising
the powers and option hereby given they shall be
sole and final judges.” I only observe upon this
that the settior must have contemplated a con-
tinuance of the trust and of the powers com-
mitted to the trustees for an indefinite and a
lengthened period. They were to ‘‘ hold” the
residue, to ‘‘retain” it for themselves or any
other trustees, whom they could appoint at their
absolute discretion, and the ‘¢ vesting” recognised
in the children and grandchildren could only be
a “vesting” sub modo, and subject to their con-
trol, inasmuch as they were empowered to vest
the estate ¢ in their own persons” or those of their
nominees for the purposes of the trust. The
provisions are wholly inconsistent with the con-
tention that at the end of the six months, or at
any period before the actual payment of the
several shares, the authority of the trustees as to
the time and mode of distribution of the property’
was intended to be taken away.

The words of the deed seem to me to give the
trustees absolute power to postpone any payment
to any of the beneficiaries at any time before the

NO. XXXV.
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funds have been disbursed, and the exercise of
that power was to them not only a right, but a
duty to be performed as long as they continued
to hold their fiduciary capacity. They were to
observe the condition and the fluctuations of the
property, they were to observe the conduct, the
character, and wants of the cestuique trusts, and
according to their view of these matters they were
to exercise the anthority and option counfided to
them, in the time and in the manner of which they
were to be ‘‘the sole and final judges.”

In this way the settlor provided that his pur-
poses should be carried into effect, and the result
was that the beneficiaries took an estate vested
in them, and, if the trustees thought proper, to
belong to them absolutely at the periods indi-
cated, but it was a qualified estate, to be enjoyed
by them only on the conditions and at the times
which the trustees in their uncontrolled discretion
should appoint.

1t seems to me that the arrestment could not
possibly affect the condition of things. What the
debtor had was attached fov the benefit of the
creditor. What he had not, the arrestment could
neither give him nor take from him. It could
not make the estate absolute which was qualified.
It could not take from the trustees the power
which enabled them to deny its liability to attach-
ment. What was his could be taken ; what was
not his, if the trustees intervened and exercised
their right and duty to postpone, could not.
Tantum ef tale as it was, and as he could claim it
for himself, it might pass to his creditor or as-

.signee, but no process of a Court could give to him
or them that to which he was not legally entitled.

In this respect there is no distinction between
English and Scottish law, and both of them are
in accordance with reason and justice. James
Chambers could not have forced his trustees
against their judgment and in disregard of their
duty to pay him at once the money the payment
of which they deemed it expedient to postpone;
and his creditors can havenohigherright—mneither
the debtor nor the creditor can be permitted to
disregard the direction and defeat the purpose
of the settlor of the property. No special mode
of postponement is prescribed by the deed of
trust. The manner, as well as the time and the
conditions of it, was left to their discretion, and
the declaration of their resolution to postpone,
however made, was sufficient for the purpose.
Three several times they declared that resolution.
Still holding the residue, as soon as the creditors
made a legal demand they answered to the third
condescendence that ¢“ the trustees have thought
it proper and have resolved to postpone the pay-
ment and to pay the interest only to Mr James
Chambers for his aliment as provided by the
trust-deed,” adding that ¢ the interest will be no
more than sufficient for Mr James Chambers’
aliment.” This, in my view, would have been of
itself sufficient to bar the claim of the creditors,
but it was followed up by the deed of Janmnary,
more formally setting forth the same resolution,
and again by the deed of July, with the same ob-
ject and effect.

Your Lordships have heard much argument as
“to the deed of January and its alleged operation
in giving James Chambers a right to the benefits
of his share without the continuing control of the
trustees, who did not reserve in it any power of
revocation. This view would make the deed of

July, which uses the unequivocal words ‘ for his
liferent alimentary use,” not employed in the
deed of January, of no avail as an answer to the
respondents’ claim. But looking carefally to the
terms of the deed of January, although it might
have been made more clear, as was that which
followed it, I think that its recitals—its state-
ment that the share of James Chambers is not
more than “‘a suitable alimentary provision for
himself and his family,” and its provision that
the interest only should be drawn at such times
and in such proportions as the trustees might
deem expedient—are conclusive against the reason-
ing of the respondents. I agreed with my noble
and learned friend that no technical words are
necessary to carry out the designs which from
these passages and the circumstances of the case
we must believe the trustees to have had at heart;
and the deed therefore seems to me abundantly
sufficient as an exercise of their power to prevent
the operation of the arrestment even if, as I do
not conceive it to have been, any further exercise
of it was needful for that purpose after the de-
claration of their resolution to postpone which
they had made in their pleadings. In this view
your Lordships do not require at all to consider
the deed of July.

Neither do I think that the delay of making or
declaring the resolution until after the institution
of proceedings,idiminishes its force or affects the
rights of the parties. The power of the trustees
was to continue until they had actually parted
with the shares, and the exercise of it was made
necessary by those very proceedings which gave
the first occasion for such interference as the
settlor had manifestly intended them to make.
As the arrestment could not invest the debtor
with any interest he had not before, it could not
take from the trustees the power rightly or
wrongly committed to them, and legitimately
called into action by the arrestment itself. This
view must, I think, have been adopted by the
Court below when by its interlocutor of the 17th
July 1877 it allowed the amendment of the re-
cord which put in issue the two deeds executed
after the raising of the action. With reference
to them, however, as I have said, the answer to the
third condescendence appears to me sufficient to
sustain the appellants’ case.

Therefore, my Lords, holding that the intention
of the settlor is clear; s¢hat the power given tothe
trustees was ample to carry that intention into
effect; that their action was within the scope of
that power, and that it was validly executed; I
am of opinion that the appeal should be allowed,
and the interlocutor of the First Division of the
Court of Session reversed, with costs.

In the view I have taken it is wholly unneces-
sary to decide the question raised as to the test-
ing clause of the trust-deed, and therefore I give
no opinfon upon it.

Lorp BLackBURN—My Lords, in this case the
respondents, having obtained a judgment in the
Court of Exchequer in England against James
Chambers, arrested in the hands of Robert
Chambers and others, the trustees of the late Dr
Robert Chambers (wko are the appellants), ‘“the
sum of £23500 sterling, more or less, due and ad-
debted by them or any of them to the said James
Chambers or to any other person or persons for
his use and behoof, by bond, bill, decreet, contract,
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agreement, or by any manner of way whatsoever,
together also with all goods, gear, debts, sums of
money, rents of lands and houses, and every
other thing presently in the hands, custody, and
keeping of the said arrestees pertaining and be-
longing to the said James Chambers, all to re-
main in the hands of the said arrestees under
sure fence and arrestment at the instance of the
said Charles Edward Smith, Charles George
Smith, and Edward Smith, aye and until they be
completely satisfied and paid off the sum of
£2294, 1s. 10d., with the sum of £4, 6s. for costs
of suit, and the legal interest thereof since due
and till paid.”

'The respondents issued a summons asking as
the first alternative that the arrestees should be
decerned to pay to the respondents the money in
their hands—at least such part thereof as shall
satisfy and pay the pursuers the sum of £2294,
1s. 10d., with costs and interest.

The trustees were appointed by the late Dr
Chambers under a trust-disposition and settle-
ment, dated the 10th November 1870, on the
construction and legal effect of which the ques-
tions debated at the bar of your Lordships’

- House mainly depend. I will return to this deed
afterwards.

In the condescendence the third answer ori-
ginally stood as follows:—‘* Admitted that the
defenders, the arrestees, had not at the date of the
arrestments, and have not since, executed any
deed under their hands with reference to the
share of the defender Mr James Chambers in his
father’s estate. Admitted that a balance of the
defender’s share of residue is yet in the hands of
the trustees. Explained that the amount of said
balance has not yet been ascertained, but believed
that it would probably be equal to the amount of
the pursuer’s debt. Quoad ultra denied, and ex-
plained that the trustees have thought it proper
and have resolved to postpone the payment of the
said balance, and to pay the interest only to Mr
James Chambers for his aliment as provided in
the trust-deed. Explained further that the said
interest will be no more than sufficient for Mr
James Chambers’ aliment.”

By an interlocutor dated 17th July 1877, which
has not been appealed against, they were per-
mitted to amend by adding—* Since the raising
of the present action, and of these dates (10th,
13th, and 16th January 1877) the defenders exe-
cuted a deed restricting Mr James Chambers’
interest under the trust as therein mentioned.
The said deed was produced in process, and is
referred to. Of these ofher dates (6th, 9th, and
10th July 1877), for the purpose of obviating any
doubt as to the meaning and effect of the said
deed, the defenders executed a second deed of
restriction, which they have produced in process,
and which they are about to place on record. The
said deed is referred to for its terms.”

The pleas-in-law for the pursuers were—*‘ (1)
The defender, the principal debtor, being due
and owing to the pursuers the sums contained in
the said extract-judgment, the defenders, the
arrestees,are liable to account to the pursuers for
the said principal debtor’s funds in their hands
in terms of the conclusions of the summons. (2)
Assuming that the declaration introduced into
the testing clause of Dr Chambers’ settlement is
effectual to constitute an alimentary provision,
the defender’s share of residue is attachable to

the extent of the surplus in excess of a reasonable
alimentary annunity. (3) In any event, the pur-
suers are entitled to have their arrestments made
effectual to the effect of giving them a preference
over the fee or reversion of the said share of
residue, subject to the burden of the defender’s
life interest.”

The pleas-in-law for defenders were—¢‘ (1) The
averments of the pursuers are irrelevant, at least
as against the defenders the arrestees. (2) Upon
a sound construction of the said trust-disposition
and settlement, the trustees are entitled to retain
in their hands the share of residue belonging to
the said James Chambers, and to apply the
interest of the same as an alimentary fund for his
beboof. (3) The said trustees not being bound
to pay the principal of the said share of residue
to the said James Chambers, either now or sub-
sequently, the pursuers are not entitled to any
decree of furthcoming.”

The parties on the 22d February, when the
case was before the Lord Ordinary, by a joint-
minute agreed to accept the statements contained
in a letter of the 31st January 1877 as substan-
tially correct, and concurred'in renouncing further
probation.

The effect of the statements in this letter is that
the share of capital falling to James Chambers,
exclusive of his interest in some heritable property
in the High Street, was originally £4600, and that
he had up to the 1st June 1875 been paid so much
as to reduce the capitel, exclusive of heritable
property, to £2525. Besides this, there was the
share of the heritable property, amounting to
£530. These two sums together amount to £3050,
a sum which, if it is available for that purpose,
is more than sufficient to discharge the judgment
debt. The statement as to profits and income is
not so clear. The income up to 31st March 1875
seems to have been then ascertained, and paid to
James Chambers. Between that date and the
31st March 1876 he was paid in all £568, 12s. 2d.
This high rate of interest is accounted for by the
greater part of the funds being invested in what,
judging from this, must be a flourishing business.

It is not expressly stated at what periods the
firm were in the habit of ascertaining and divid-
ing their profits, but I think it may reasonably
be inferred that it was on the 31st March in each
year. On the 6th July 1876 James Chambers
was paid £150 on account. I think the reason-
able inference is that at least all profits and
income due before the date of the arrestment,
29th day of September 1876, had been paid, and
certainly the arrestors have not proved that
any arrears of income were at that date in the
hands of the arrestees and due to James Cham-
bers. But it appears from the’same letter that
the partnership came to an end on the 8lst
December 1876, and therefore, probably (though
not certainly), a considerable sum for profits
became due on that day and before the 10th
January 1877. If it becomes material to ascer-
tain how this is the case, it must be sent down
again for that purpose, as your Lordships have
no materials before !you from which to do so.
In the view, however, which I take of the con-
struction of the deeds of 10th November 1870
and 10th January 1877, it is not necessary to
ascertain this.

The Lord Ordinary (Lord Young) by his
interlocutor sustained the second and third
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pleas-in-law for the defenders, and by doing
so he decided that the arrestees were entitled
to retain both principal and income as against
the arrestors. The First Division ‘‘recall this
interlocutor, repel the defences, and decern
in the forthcoming in terms of the first alterna-
tive.” By doing so they decided that the arres-
tors were entitled to the capital, and as that was
more than sufficient to justify the judgment
debt, they had no occasion to consider, and did
not consider, whether there was any difference as
to the income.

Lord Shand, who dissented from that judgment,
says—‘‘I am unable to concur in the proposed
judgment, being of opinion with the Lord Ordi-
nary that the trustees of the late Dr Chambers
are entitled under the powers conferred by his
settlement to retain the money to which the
pursuers as creditors of Mr James Chambers
maintain they have acquired right, and to apply
the interest or proceeds towards the maintenance
of Mr Chambers and his family. In the view
I take of the case it is unnecessary to decide any
question as to the effect of the provision in
the testing clause, which declares the annuity,
legacies, and provisions left by Dr Chambers to
be alimentary.”

In this opinion of Lord Shand I agree. I will,
without expressing any opinion as to the effect
of the provision in the testing clause, and treat-
ing the deed as if no such provision was there
inserted, consider what is the true construction
and legal effect of the clause, beginning with the
word ‘‘lastly,”

The deceased appointed his trustees *‘to hold,
apply, pay, and convey the residue of his estate
to and for the behoof of his children (of whom
James Chambers was one). His share has now
been ascertained to have been somewhat more
than £5000,” with and under the exceptions and
modifications after stated, payable ‘“in the case
of such as are majors (which James Chambers
was) six months after my decease, declaring that
the whole provisions in favour of my said child-
ren shall at my death vest in those surviving me;”
and James Chambers did survive him. Had the
deed stopped there it would have been too plain
for doubt that the provision for James Chambers
was his to dispose of as he would, from the time
of Dr Chambers’ death, and that as soon as the
six months had elapsed he could have compelled
the trustees to pay him both principal and inter-
est. But after some provisions as to children
who died in his lifetime leaving issue, and minors,
which do not affect James Chambers, the truster
proceeds to state ‘‘the exceptions and modifica-
tions” in the following terms:—*¢ And notwith-
standing the periods above appointed for the
payment of the shares of the residue of my
means and estate, I provide and declare that it
shall be lawful to and for and in the power and
option of my trustees, if they see cause and deem
it fit, to postpone as long as they shall think it
expedient to do so the payment of the provisions
or shares of residue hereinbefore provided as
aforesaid in the case of all or any of my children
or grandehildren, and to apply the interest or
annual produce of the same during the period of
postponement to or for behoof of such children
or grandchildren, or by a deed under their hands
to retain the said provisions or any of them
vested in their own persons, or to vest the same

in the persons of other trustees (whom they are
hereby authorised to appoint), with all or any of
the powers, privileges, and exemptions belonging
to themselves, including the power of appointing
factors, so that my children and grandchildren or
any of them, as the case may be, may draw and
receive only the interest or other annual proceeds
of their respective provisions during their lives,
or for such time as my trustees may fix, and that
the capital may be settled on or for behootf of
such children or grandchildren or their lawful
issue on such conditions and under such restric-
tions and limitations and for such uses as my
trustees in their discretion may deem most ex-
pedient, of which expediency and the time and
manner of exercising the powers and option
hereby given they shall be the sole and final
Judges.”

My Lords, I shall not occupy time by examining
critically the words of this clause, which has
been sufficiently done in the Court below. The
words are not very artistically chosen, but I
think there can be no doubt that the intention of
the truster Dr Chambers was that his trustees
should have ‘“a power and option, if they see
cause and deemed it fit,” to postpone the pay-
of James Chambers’ share, and to apply the in-
terest during such postpounement to or for behoof
of James Chambers.

He probably had two motives—one was that a
large part of his means being in a business, it
might be inconvenient to give his children or
their creditors power to insist in the withdrawal
of those means from the business at the end of
six months from his death, and if the postpone-
ment was for that reason only, it would be right
to pay the interest of the share to the child.
The other motive was that he feared that his

- children or some of them might prove spend-

thrifts—in that case the trusteesjmight postpone
the payment whilst they were considering
whether they would exercise the further power of
settling the fee on the issue, and giving the
spendthrift child only the life interest. Indeed,
in any case some time must elapse before such a
deed could be prepared, but during that time. at
least the payment must be postponed. And
whilst it was postponed for such a purpose, it
would not be desirable to pay the income to the
spendthrift, but to apply it for his behoof. I
think it probable that if the present case had
been suggested as a possible one to Dr Cham-
bers, and he had been asked whether it was his
intention that the income should during the
postponement be swallowed up by the Stock
Exchange creditors, leaving James Chambers and
his family penniless, he would have said—‘ By
no means. I have given my trustees discretion
to apply it for his behoof, and they will exercise
that discretion by paying the household and
necessary expenses first before paying anything
to either James Chambers or his creditors. If
after doing so there is anything over, James
Chambers and his creditors may do what they
like with it.” But it was for the trustees, and
the trustees alone, to decide how the discretion
was to be exercised. The truster declares in the
most explicit language that of the expediency
and the time and manner of exercising the power
and option given to the trustees ¢‘ they shall be
the sole and final Judges.”

My Lords, where a truster gives discretionary
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powers to be exercised by his trustees in order to
protect the interests of others, the trustees are
bound to exercise their discretion, and cannot in
general deprive themselves by anticipation of the
power to do so— Weller v. Kerr, Law Reports,
1 Scoteh Appeals, p. 11. In the present case,
however, the terms of the trust are such that the
trustees might properly pay the whole or part of
the share at the end of six months, or any subse-
quent period—and they in fact did pay a part,
and as to that part their discretionary power was
gone. It was argued at your Lordships’ bar that
the trustees must either return and settle the
whole fund or none. No doubt there may be
and often is a trust where, from the nature of
the subject-matter and the objects of the trust
or otherwise, it appears to be the intention of the
truster that the whole shall be kept together as
one entire thing. But here the fund is in its
nature divisible, and the objects of the trust are
such as to show that it is divisible. I think
therefore that as against James Chambers the
trustees had power to exercise their discretion as
to the postponement of the payment of any part
of the fund which remained in their hands at any
time up to actual payment.

The truster no doubt has declared that the
share of James Chambers should vest on the
truster’s death, but with and under the excep-
tions and modifications to be afterwards stated.
It is judicious, and is common both in Scotland
and in England, to vest a fund subject to be
divested in after events, rather than to keep it
unvested and contingent till these events happen.
Familiar instances are referred to by Lord Shand
—as money settled, subject to the life interest of
the parents, on the children of a marriage born
or to be born, or subject to a power. The in-
terest of each child vests on both, but is subject
to be divested in part by the birth of more
children, or in the whole by the exercise of the
powers.

I do not understand any of the Judges below
to say that if there had been no arrestment in
this case, and James Chambers himself had
taken proceedings to compel the trustees to pay
over the prineipal to him, the trustees would not
have had a good answer. Lord Deas seems to
admit—or at least does not deny-—that the deed
of 10th January 1877 would have been good if
tempestive executed, but to hold it too late after
arrestment. And the Lord President expressly
says—** The sole question therefore is—How far
is the effect of this clause taken off or modified
by what follows ? It would be strange if the effect
of that modification were that in certain events
the shares should not vest at death. That would
simply undo what has immediately preceded, and
that, in my opinion, is not the effect of the
modification. But it is quite possible that a
provision may vest and yet in certain events be
subject to defeasance. An entailed estate, for
instance, may vest fglly in an heir of entail, and
yet be subject to defeasance. There have been
instances of that in cases that have recently
come before this Court, and if this is possible in
the case of an entailed estate, it may certainly
take place in other deeds of settlement made with
that purpose. 1If the clanses that follow are reso-
Iutive and not suspensive, vesting takes place as
fully and completely as if there had been no con-
ditions appended. What is the effect of the con-
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ditions and exemptions that follow? As regards
the first part of them, they are neither concerned
with vesting or divesting. They merely deal
with the term at which the provisions are to be
payable, and if there had been here a postpone-
ment of payment by the trustees in virtue of that
power, the effect would be not certainly to make
this arrestment bad, but that the right of the
arresting creditors to make their arrestment
effectual would have been postponed. Passing
over that clause, we come to a clause empowering
the frustees to create new trustees, or to consti-
tute themselves new trustees, to provide that the
beneficiaries are not to be entitled to more than
the liferent of the provisions, and that the capital
is to be settled on their children ¢ on such condi-
tions and under such restrictions and limitations
and for such uses as my trustees in their discre-
tion may deem most expedient.” Now, I quite
admit that the effect of the deed which the trus-
tees have executed is to divest the legatee of the
right as it then stood vested in him. This deed
applies and makes effectual the resolutive condi-
tion—it resolves the right in the manner contem-
plated by the truster—but till it was executed the
fee of his share of the residue remained vested in
the beneficiary just as o no such condition ex-
isted. From that it follows that the fee existed
in the legatee subject to the diligence of his
creditors at the date of the arrestments, and on
that simple ground I hold that the deed executed
by the trustees had no effect on the arrestment
previously used by the creditors.”

My Lords, I agree with all of this except the
seven words which I have emphasized, namely,
‘“just as if no such condition existed.” With
deference to the Lord President, he has over-
looked the great and fundamental difference be-
tween a gift to one ejther direct or threugh the
medium of trustees, who are mere conduit-pipes
to convey the gift to the beneficiary, and a gift
subject to a power reserved to trustees to be ex-
ercised paramount to the beneficiary and in his
despite. I think the arrestment fixes the date at
which it is to be determined whether the arresters
have a right to attach the fund, and anything
that is subsequently done by the debtor, or by
those who have rights against the debtor, or by
those who claim under him, comes too late after
that. But a divesting of the debtor — vested
properly by something quite independent of him
—is different. If a fund were given- to the
children born or to be born of A, and the credi-
tors of a person who at the time was the only
child of A arrested the fund, the birth of a second
child of A would not come too late to divest one-
half of the fund. Why? because, as I think, the
fund did not remain vested in the only child, just
as if no such condition existed, but did remain in
hima subject to that condition. And I think that
the truster having a perfect right to give his son
James nothing, had also a perfect right to give
him a vested interest in a fund, subject to a con-
dition that the trustees might in their discretion
divest that fund. In this I agree with the Lord
Ordinary (Lord Young) and Lord Shand.
Whether the truster has by the terms of this deed
effectually exercised that right is a question de-
pending upon the construction of the instrument.
I think he has.

An ingenious argument, which had not been
thought of in the Court below, was stated at
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your Lordships’ bar. It was said that the trus-
tees had exercised a deed of 10th January without
any power of revocation reserved, which they
could not afterwards alter, and it was said that
whatever might be their wish, the terms of that
deed were such that on its true construction they
had irrevocably given James Chambers an abso-
lute right to draw and receive the interest during
his life, and spend it as he pleased, and counse-
quently the arresters were entitled to do so for
their benefit. But I do not think this is the true
construction of the deed of January 10th. The
whole narrative shows an anxious desire to
secure that the income, which it is stated is not
more than is reqnired as a suitable alimentary
provision for James Chambers and his family,
should be so applied. And the final clause, that
g0 long as the said provision shall be retained
as aforesaid, the said James Chambers, or his
children or issue, shall only be entitled to draw
and receive the interest or other annual proceeds
of the said balance of his provision during his
and their lives,” on which alone the argument
rests, is followed by the words—‘‘and that at
such times and in such proportions as we may
deem expedient.” There is no rule requiring
that any special terms of art, such as ‘‘alimen-
tary,” should be used, and though the deed might
havebeen more clearly framed, I think the intention
to reserve to the trustees a power to control the
purposes for which the income was to be spent
sufficiently appears, and under the very extensive
powers given to them by the truster the trustees
had power to do so as far as James Chambers
was concerned. What may be the effect as to
his children after his death may be settled then.

My Lords, if this view is adopted by your
Lordships, it becomes unnecessary to decide
whether the proviso inserted in the testing
clause is effectual.

Should it in any future case become material,
those who have to decide the question must say
whether the very powerful reasoning of Lord
Deas, agreed to by all the other Judges, is con-
sistent with the ratio decidendi of this House in
Dunlop v. Greenlees (8 Macph. 46). I wish to say
nothing to bias the decision of that either one
way or the other.

I entirely agree in the proposed judgment.

Lorp Gorpon—My Lords, I also agree in the
proposed judgment. The facts of the case have
been so fully stated by my noble and learned
friends who have preceded me, that I shall en-
deavour to compress as much as possible the ob-
servations that I have to make in supplement to
the opinions which they have expressed.

It was of course essential to the decision of
this case that the terms of the trust-deed should
be read. But they bave been read by some of
your Lordships, and therefore it is unnecessary
for me now to trouble your Lordships, as I had
otherwise proposed to do by reading them. I
will simply say that the deed contains this clause
—‘“And in order to prevent the failure of the
discretionary powers hereby conferred in conse-
quence of the office of trustee lapsing, I request
my trustees, as soon as their number is by resig-
nation or otherwise reduced below three, to
assume other trustees or trustee according to
law, and with the same powers as are hereby
conferred on themselves.”

The Scottish Law [eporter.

Smiths v. Chambers’ Trs.,
April 15, 1878

There was also inserted in the testing clause of
the deed a declaration in the following terms :—
‘¢ But with and under this express provision and
declaration, viz., that the whole of the legacies,
annuity, and provisions made and provided by
this disposition and deed of settlement shall be
strictly alimentary, and shall not be arrestable
or attachable for the debts or deeds of the per-
sons in whose favour the same are conceived, or
any of them, nor be subject or liable to the dili-
gence of their creditors.”

Dr Robert Chambers, the testator, left several
children, and amongst others a son James. Under
the above-recited provision of the residue of the
estate James Chambers became entitled to a sum
of about £8000, to account of which he received
between March 1871 and 6th July 1876 sums
amounting in all to £4982, leaving a balance in
the hands of the trustees of about £3000. James
Chambers had also an interest in his father’s
share of the publishing business of W. & R.
Chambers. At the time of the truster’s death
the partnership had five years to runm, and the
truster authorised his trustees to make arrange-
ments for continuing the business beyond that
period. The testator therefore evidently had it
in contemplation that the trust might exist for a
considerable length of time.

My Lords, this litigation originated in an action
of furthcoming at the instance of certain credi-
tors of James Chambers, who claimed in virtue
of arrestments which had been placed on certain
funds in the hands of the trustees under the will
of Dr Robert Chambers. .

My Lords, the respondents in the action con-
tended that in virtue of their arrestments and of
the action of furthcoming they had attached the
funds in the hands of the trustees which had
been bequeathed by the testator in favour of his
son James. And the trustees (appellants) stated
in their defence that they had thought it proper
and had resolved to postpone the payment of the
balance in their hands, and to pay the interest
only to James Chambers for his aliment, as pro-
vided in the trust-deed. And they further stated
(by permission of the Court after the case went
to the Inner House) that since the raising of the
action, and of these dates—10th, 13th, and 16th
January 1877—they had executed a deed restrict-
ing James Chambers’ interest under the trust as
therein mentioned, and that for the purpose of
obviating any doubt as to the meaning and effect
of the said deed they had executed a second deed
of restriction, dated Gth, 9th, and 10th July 1877,

" which they produced, and which they stated they

were about to place on record.

The second and third pleas stated for the de-
fenders (the appellants) were as follows:—*‘‘(2)
Upon a sound construction of the said trust-dis-
position and settlement the trustees are entitled
to retain in their hands the share of residue be-
longing to the said James Chambers, and to apply
the interest of the same as ap alimentary fund for
his behoof. (3) The said trustees not being
bound to pay the principal of the said share of
residue to the said James Chambers either now or
subsequently, the pursuers are not entitled to any
decree of furthcoming.”

The Lord Ordinary (Lord Young) by his inter-
locutor, dated 22d February 1877, sustained these
two pleas for the appellants, and dismissed the
setion, but did not assoilzie the defenders—that
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is proposed to be corrected by the judgment to
be pronounced by your Lordships.

The trustees took the case by reclaiming note
to the First Division of the Court, and their
Lordships of that Division allowed the record to
be amended by the addition of the statement by
the trustees of the execution of the two deeds of
trust of January and July 1877, that has been re-
ferred to by my noble and learned friend opposite
(Lord Blackburn).

I need not again call your Lordships’ attention
to the deed of trust of July 1877, which I had
intended to read. This deed was lodged in pro-
cess, and the case was thereafter debated before
their Lordships of the First Division, who on
20th July 1877 appointed the cause to be further
argued by one counsel on each side, with a special
view to the application and effect, if any, of the
declaration contained in the testing clause of the
settlement of Dr Chambers, and on 9th Novem-
ber 1877 their Lordships recalled the interlocutor
pronounced by Lord Young, and repelled the de-
fences, and decerned in favour of the pursuers
for the sums claimed by them, with expenses.

That judgment of the First Division of the
Court has now been brought by appeal to your
Lordships’ House. The appellants maintain
their appeal on three grounds—I1st, On the
terms of the trust-settlement, apart from and
exclusive of any effect being given to the special
provision and declaration contained in the testing
clause of the trust-deed as to the provisions in
the deed being alimentary, and on the judicial
intimation contained in the record; 2d, On the
terms of the deed of trust restriction of the pro-
‘visions, dated in January 1877; and 3d, On the
deed of July 1877. The majority of the Judges
of the First Division adopted to a great extent
the argument of the respondents. Their Lord-
ships held that the declaration inserted in the
testing clause of the trust-deed could not receive
effect, and to this part of the case I shall after-
wards advert. They also held that the provisions
in favour of James Chambers had vested in him
at the death of the testator, and therefore these
had been validly attached by the respondents,
arrestments before any deed of restriction had
been executed by the trustees, and that the re-
spondents were therefore entitled to be preferred
to the funds in the hands of the trustees to the
extent of the debt due by James Chambers.
Lord Mure shortly expresses his own opinion
and the result arrived at by the majority of the
Court in these terms—*‘ Reading the provisions
of this deed, as I think we must, without refer-
ence to the tenor of the testing clause, I am of
opinion that this fund was arrestable at the date
of the pursuer’s arrestments, and was validly
attached. The broad ground on which I go is,
that vesting was intended to take place, and did
take place, at the date of the granter’s death, in
respect of the express words and declaration of
the deed to that effect, while the provision was
made payable six months after that event. If
therefore no such deed as that which the trustees
have now executed had been before us, I could
have had no difficulty in holding that the arrest-
ing creditor must prevail. The only question is
—Whether the deed executed by the trustees
since this case came into Court makes any differ-
ence? And I am of opinion that it does not,
because it appears to me that as the provision

had vested in Mr James Chambers by the express
terms of the trust-deed at the date of the truster's
death in 1870, it required some distinct act on the
part of the trustees to divest him of his right to
the fund, and until some such step was taken I
am of opinion, with Lord Deas, that the fund re-
mained attachable by creditors, and was validly
arrested by the pursuers of the present action.”
On the other hand, Lord Shand, one of the
Judges of the First Division, dissented from the
views of the majority, and concurred with the
Lord Ordinary in the opinion that the trustees of
Dr Chambers *‘are entitled, under the powers
conferred by his settlement, to retain the money
to which the pursuers, as creditors of Mr James
Chambers, maintain they have acquired right,
and to apply the interest or proceeds towards the
maintenance of Mr Chambers and his family.”
And his Lordship stated that in the view he took
of the case it was unnecessary to decide any
question as to the effect of the provision in the
testing clause which declares the annuity, lega-
cies, and provisions left by Dr Chambers to be
alimentary, but that on that part of the case he
agreed with the opinions which had been ex-
pressed by the majority.

I have a very great respect for the opinions of
the Lord President and the Judges who com-
posed the majority of the First Division, but I
think that in considering the effect of the terms
of the trust-disposition (apart from the terms of
the provision in the testing clause, to which I
shall afterwards refer) they have failed in this
case to give due effect to decisions by your Lord-
ships’ House, and also to decisions in the Court
of Session. I concur generally in the views
taken of the case by Lord Shand, with the excep-
tion of the view taken by him in regard to the
declaration of the alimentary provision in the
testing clanse. But I concur with him in think-
ing that it is unnecessary for the decision of the
case to decide any question as to the effect of
the declaration in the testing clause of the deed.
I think that the trust-deed conferred on the
trustees the most ample power of securing the
provisions of the children of the testator, and
that the rights of the trustees to deal with these
provisions could not be affected by the diligence
of creditors of the children. I do not doubt that
the provisions in favour of the children vested in
them, but the provisions vested only subject to
the conditions of the trust, and specially subject
to the power given to the trustees to regulate the
payment of the provisions, or to secure them from
the rights of third parties contained in the deed.
I do not think it necessary to comment at any
length on the provisions of the deed. These
have been fully examined and commented on by
Lord Shand and by those of your Lordships who
have already spoken, and as I concur generally
in his views in regard to them it is unnecessary
to detain your Lordships by a detailed examina-
tion of them. I shall advert to only two autho-
rities which I think confirm the views I take of
the case.

In the case of Duncan, §c. (Croom’s Trustees) v.
Croom, November 30, 1859, 22 . (Court of Session
Reports, 2d series) 45, a question arose under the
terms of a trust-deed—Whether a legatee, whose
share of the trust-estate, it was alleged, had
vested in virtue of express words in the deed to
that effect, had power to test on the said share?
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The testator directed bis trustees at the end of
twelve months after his death, or on the eldest
survivor of John Croom Wallace, Esther, Char-
lotte, and Mary Keith, and the lawful children of
George Croom attaining the age of twenty-one
years complete, whichever of these events shounld
last happen, to realise his estate, and to divide and
apportion the whole residue of his means and
estate equally among the said John Croom Wal-
lace, and Esther, Charlotte, and Mary Keith, and
the children of George Croom, subject to the con-
ditions after mentioned, and the survivors and
survivor of them, share and share alike, and that
per capita and not per stirpes, and the testator,
inter alia, directed ‘¢ the shares or portions before
provided to the lawful children procreated and to
be procreated of the body of the said George
Croom at the period of the division aforesaid,
shall be paid equally to and among the whole
children of the said George Croom, whether pro-
created at the said period of division or subse-
quently procreated, and to the survivors and
survivor of them, on their respectively attaiving
the age of twenty-one years, or on the death of
their father, whichever of these events shall last
happen, with interest on their respective por-
tions till paid;” and the testator provided that
‘““on any of the said residuary legatees, being
children of the said George Croom, attaining the
age of twenty-one years, then the interest or
annual produce of his or her portion shall be paid
to him or her until the death of their said father,
when their ghares or portions shall become pay-
able: Declaring that on the eldest of the said
residuary legatees attaining the age of twenty-one
years, then the whole of the said legacies before
mentioned shall vest: Declaring, nevertheless,
that in case any of the children of the said
George Croom shall die after the said period of
division, and before the respective terms of pay-
ment, without leaving lawful issue, then the
share vested in such deceaser shall be paid to the
survivors and survivor of them equally, subject
always to the same provisions and declarations
applicable to their original shares of my said
estate.”

John Croom Wallace, the eldest of the annui-
tants, attained majority in March 1848. George
Croom died in 1853, leaving five daughters and
two sons. One of them, Mary Croom, died in
April 1858, before attaining majority. She left
a settlement by which she appointed her sister
Mrs Adams and Dr William David Adams her
executors, and disposed of her estate. Mary
Croom’s executors asked from John Croom’s
trustees payment of her share of that portion of
his estate bequeathed to the children of her father
George Croom, and raised an action of multiple-
poinding in the name of the trustees under John
Croom’s settlement, in which the fund in medio
condescended on was Mary Croom’s share of
John Croom’s succession, amounting to £1205,
under deduction of residue-duty. The executors
claimed (1) to be ranked and preferred to the
whole fund in medio; or (2)if it should be held
that the share of the estate of John Croom falling
to Mary, and forming the fund ¢n medio, had not
vested in her, and was not within her power of
disposal by will, the claimant Mrs Adams, as
Mary Croom's sister, claimed to be ranked pari
passu with the other brothers and sisters of Mary,
five in number.

Lord Benholme (Lord Ordinary) pronounced
an interlocutor ranking and preferring Dr and
Mrs Adams in terms of the second alternative of
their claim, holding that ““ as the testator has, in
the event which has happened, ordered payment
to be made to the survivors of George Croom’s
family, without any qualification, and as he has
given this instruction in the very face of the de-
claration as to the vesting, and, as it were, as a
rider upon it, the Lord Ordinary thinks it safest
to give effect to that instruétion.”

A reclaiming note was presented for Dr and
Mrs Adams, who maintained that the trust-deed
provided that the bequests to the legatees should
vest in a certain event—namely, when the eldest
legatee attained majority, and that that was the
period of division, and they were clearly intended
then to vest, as the legatees were to receive in-
terest from that period, and that there was no-
thing in the deed to take off the effect of the
precise declaration as to the date of vesting ; and
that though the truster provided a substitution in
the event of a legatee dying intestate, that sub-
stitution was evacuated by Miss Croom’s settle-
ment, she having survived the period of vesting.

The Lord Justice-Clerk—the present Lord
President (Inglis), then President of the Second
Division—said—*‘ The provisions in this settle-
ment are peculiar. I have often thought, and
may have remarked, that it would be desirable,
in order to avoid the difficulties which arise in
the construction of settlements as to the period
of vesting, that testators should expressly declare
when the vesting is to take place. Here, how-
ever, the testator has done so expressly, and
thence has arisen the whole difficulty in the case,
so I feaer that is a very doubtful remedy. We
must read this deed as the Lord Ordinary has
proposed to read it, not with a view only to the
technical interpretation of the words used, but
in order to arrive at the true meaning of the
testator. 'There may be clauses creating not only
embarrassment but even inconsistency. But
when a trust is created the Court is entitled to
read the directions to the trustees for the mere
purpose of ascertaining the intention of the
truster, apart from the technical meaning of par-
ticular terms in the deed.” And after consider-
ing the terms of the deed his Lordship expressed
his opinion that though there was an express
declaration that the shares were to vest on the
occurrence of a certain event, yet that that de-
claration must be read in connection with and
be controlled by the other provisions of the deed.

Lord Wood concurred with the Lord Justice-
Clerk, and said—*‘Although there may at first
sight seem to be an inconsistency here, there is
no real inconsistency. If the deed be considered
as a whole, it is clear that there is no inconsist-
ency in the mind of the testator. He did not
mean one thing in omne part of it and another
thing in another part. He declares, indeed, that
the shares shall not vest at the period of division;
but then he goes on quite consistently to qualify
that declaration by the explanation immediately
following. He may appoint a sort of vesting,
but it is subject to and restricted by the rights
conferred on the survivors at the date of pay-
ment.”

And Lord Benholme (who had been Lord Ordi-
nary in the case, and was then one of the Judges
in the Second Division) said—*1 adbere to the
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view which I have had all along, that the inten-
tion of the truster in his declaration qualifying
the provision of vesting is so very clear that I
could not allow any argument founded on the
mere technical meaning of the words used to
override what stood out on the face of the deed
as the intention of the truster.”

I think that decision is entitled to much weight,
and that the principle there laid down is what
ought to rule the decision in the present case. It
was there held that though the direction as to the
period of vesting of the provisions was most pre-
cise—just as is contended by the respondents in
this case—yet that that direction was controlled
by the other provisions of the deed, and that the
deed must be read, as the Lord Justice-Clerk
(Inglis) said, ‘‘not with a view only to the techni-
cal interpretation of the words used, but in order
to arrive at the true meaning of the testator.”

Applying that principle to the present case, I
can entertain no doubt whatever that the inten-
tion of the testator was that his trustees should
have, and should exercise if they thought proper,
the very important power of control over the pro-
visions made in favour of his children. The
clause conferring the powers is very carefully
framed, and the subsequent clause directing the
trustees to assume new trustees, ‘‘in order to
prevent the failure of the discretionary powers
hereby conferred,” shows how anxious the testator
was on the subject. I have no doubt that in this
case the clauses declaring the period of vesting
and fixing the period of payment of the provi-
sions are overruled and controlled by the subse-
quent clauses, and that the trustees had power,
and were entitled when they thought proper, to
exercise that power, and limit the rights of James
Chambers as they have done.

The next case to which I shall refer—and the
only other case to which I shall refer upon this
branch of the case—is one relating to the power
and duty of trustees under a clause permitting a
restriction of provisions such as occurs in the
present deed. The case to which I refer is that
of Kerr's Trustees v. Weller, 19th Dec. 1863, 2 M.
p- 371. In that case the trustees were directed
by the trust-deed to limit the right of the truster’s
son in the event of his not conducting himself so
as to merit the approval of the trustees to a life-
rent of an heritable estate, which was to be made
over on his attaining the age of 25. The son
mearried when he was 22, and on that occasion
the trustees entered in their minutes an approval
of the marriage, and the marriage-settlements
proceeded on the footing of the son having right
to dispose of the fee of the property. It was
held by the Lord Ordinary (Lord Kinloch) that
the power conferred on the trustees might be
exercised at any time before the son attained 25
years, and might be exercised by a majority of
the trustees in office at the time, although another
trustee who had been in office during a porfion
of the time when the conduct disapproved of had
taken place had died. The case came before the
First Division, then presided over by Lord Presi-
dent M‘Neill, afterwards Lord Colonsay. The
Lord President and Lord Curriehill affirmed the
Lord Ordinary’s interlocutor, but Lord Deas dis-
sented proceeding chiefly upon the ground that
the trustees, by approving of the marriage and
the marriage-settlements were precluded from
exercising the power in question to the prejudice
of the wife and children of that marriage.

This judgment was appealed from— Weller v-
Kerr and Others, 1st March 1866, 1 Law Reports
(Scotch Appeals), p. 11. The marginal note
bears that ‘‘ when a power, coupled with a duty,
is conferred upon trustees to be executed by
them at a fixed period, and after they have come
to a judgment as to the conduct of the individual
to be affected, they cannot divest themselves of
the power or execute it until the time appointed,
nor can they enter into any anterior contract re-
specting it.” It was held to be the duty of the
trustees (the husband having in their judgment
subsequently misconducted himself) to execute
the power 5o as to restrict him to a life-interest,
although the effect was to defeat the provisions
for the wife, as well as other claims founded on a
confident expectation that the marriage-settle-
ment would not be disturbed.”

The Lord Chancellor (Lord Cairns) said—*‘ It
seems a very strange proposition that if a testator
gives a power to trustees, evidently to be exer-
cised only with reference to the interests of his
children, or those for whom he is providing, the
trustees shall be able to say, ‘ We give up that
power'—a power which was committed to them,
not for their own benefit, but for the benefit of
others. But whether they had the power of
divesting themselves or not, my clear opinion is
that they never did divest themselves of that
power.”

Lord Chelmsford said that he entirely agreed
in the opinion of the Lord Ordinary and of the
majority of the Judges of the Court below. His
Lordship added—*‘‘It appears to me that the
trustees could not either abandon or fetter the
exercise of the power entrusted to them. It was
a power coupled with a duty of a most important
character. It was evidently intended that it
should be retained and freely exercised down to
the time when they were called upon to convey
the estate. But even assuming that the trustees
might have bound themselves not to interfere
with the rights and interests created by the mar-
riage-settlement by giving their consent to it, in
point of fact no such consent was ever given.
That they consented to the marriage is clearly
proved, and this would of course prevent their
afterwards making it the ground of objection to
the conveyance of the fee to the heir. But it is
not correct to say that the consent to the mar-
riage carried with it a consent to the marriage-
settlement. The trustees’ names were designedly
omitted as consenting parties to the settlement.
But if they had consented to the settlement it
would in my judgment have made no difference.
All parties knew, or ought to have known, that
the provisions of the settlement could only be
contingent and conditional, depending upon the
conduct of the son till his age of 25.”

Lord Kingsdown said—“1 entirely agree with
my noble and learned friends.”

That decision, my Lords, in my opinion, rules
the point which your Lordships have to decide as
to the effect of the arrestments used by the re-
spondents in the hands of Dr Chambers’ trustees.
The power given by the testator was (in the words
of the Lord Chancellor) ¢ evidently to be exer-
cised only with reference to the interests of his
children,” and that being so, I am of opinion
with his Lordship in that case that the trustees
here would not be entitled to say—*‘ We give up
that power—a power which was committed to
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them, not for their own benefit, but for the benefit
of others.” The power was to be exercised by
the trustees ‘“if they see cause and deem it fit.”
Apparently they saw no cause for interfering with
James Chambers’ provision until his proceedings
were brought under their notice by the arrest-
ments used in their hands ; but his conduct and
the state of his affairs having been brought under
their notice, the trustees saw cause and deemed
it fit to intervene. 'They, in the first place, inti-
timated in their defences to the summons of
forthcoming that they had thought it proper and
had resolved to postpone the payment of the
balance in their hands, and to pay the interest
only to James Chambers for his aliment, as pro-
vided for in the deed; and then the trustees exe-
cuted the deed of January 1877, by which they
retained vested in themselves the whole of the
balance of the provisions or shares of the residue
falling to James Chambers in trust for his behoof
during his lifetime, and after his death for behoof
of his children. I am of opinion that the deed so
executed by the trustees is a valid deed; that they
were entitled to exercise the power vested in
them at any time before payment; and that they
were not interpelled from the exercise of their
powers by the arrestments used in their hands.

A question has been raised as to the power of
the trustees, there being no power of revocation
in the first deed, to execute the second deed of
July 1877, which declares that the provisions
were vested in the trustees in trust only ¢¢ for be-
hoof of the said James Chambers, in liferent for
his liferent alimentary use allenarly,” and after
his death for behoof of his children. I am of
opinion that the question so raised does not re-
quire to be decided, for I think the effect of the
first deed is effectually to secure the whole pro-
visions against the diligence of the creditors of
James Chambers, for the deed declares that ‘‘ so
long as the said provisions shall be retained as
aforesaid, the said James Chambers or his chil-
dren shall only be entitled to draw and receive
the interest or other annual proceeds of the said
balance of his provisions during his and their
lives, and at such times and in such proportions
as we may deem expedient.”

1 think the views which I have expressed are
sufficient for the decision of the case, and that it

is not necessary to consider the question raised -

as to the validity of the declarations inserted in
the testing clause of the deed declaring the pro-
visions to be alimentary, and therefore I would
prefer that your Lordships should leave the point
to be disposed of in some case where it is really
necessary to be decided, and where the authorities
are more fully discussed than I think they were
in the Court of Session or before your Lordships.
But as the Court below has dealt with that ques-
tion, and it has been discussed at your Lordships’
bar, it is right that I should state my views in
regard to it.

The Lord Ordinary (Lord Young) was of opinion
that the declaration inserted in the testing clause
must be read and receive effect as part of the
testamentary deed of the testator, but their Lord-
ships of the First Division were unanimous in
holding that as the proper function of the testing
clause was to state the particulars required by
the testing statutes in regard to the subscription
of the granter and authentication of the deed by
the subseribing witnesses, the insertion of a sub-

stantial provision going beyond this was ineffec-
tual, and consequently that the declaration in
3uestion could not be regarded as part of the
eed.

There can be no doubt that the testing clause
is not a proper place for the insertion of an im-
portant clause, or for any clause unconnected
with the testing of the deed. But I think the
decisions to be afterwards referred to show that
words of much importance to the validity and
effect of a deed mmay be so inserted. The late
Professor Montgomerie Bell, Professor of Con-
veyancing in the University of Edinburgh, in his
Lectures on Conveyancing, says at page 2385
““As a general rule, all matter foreign to the
proper purpose of the clause ought carefully to
be excluded. Sometimes, however, it is unavoid-
able to introduce in the testing clause an addition
to the deed not appropriate to that clause, and if
the addition be made in competent form and duly
authenticated effect is not denied to it as part of
the deed.” I think this passage shows that it
was not considered by practitioners to be Incom-
petent to insert in the testing clause ‘‘an addi-
tion to the deed not appropriate to that clause.”
If it was averred that the addition so inserted was
done without authority, or that it was not duly
authenticated, there might be room for inquiry.
But there ;was no such allegation made in the
present case. The declaration in question is part
of a probative deed, and the deed is founded
upon by both parties.

There are decisions not only of the Court of
Session but of your Lordships’ House which ap-
pear to sanction the validity of a declaration in-
serted in a testing clause. I may refer to the
cases of Joknston v. Coldstream and Dunlop v.
Greenlees,  With reference to the case of Johnston
v. Coldstream, Lord Deas says, in his opinion in
the case now before your Lordships, that in the
case of Dunlop v. Greenlees I am correctly re-
ported to have said—‘The first point (whether
the wife’s signature bound her as a party to the
first deed) was decided in the case of Johnston,
and I concur with your Lordship that we cannot
go back upon that case, which, moreover, I think
was rightly decided.”” And then he goes on to
say—**1 do not think T require to impugn either
my own opinion or that of the House of Lords in
Dunlop v. Greenlees in order to come to the con-
clusion that the ¢express provision and declara-
tion’ introduced into the testing clause of the
present deed is beyond the proper functions of a
testing clause.”

The case of Dunlop v. Greenlees was decided in
your Lordships’ House on 2d June 1865. It is to
be found reported at page 46 of the House of Lords
Reports in 3 Macpherson (8d series, Court of
Session Cases). The Lord Chancellor (Lord
Westbury) said—¢‘ The first point which presents
itself is one entirely affecting the practice of Scot-
land as to the execution and attestation of settle-
ments, and it is a point unquestionably of the
utmost possible importance. The point has arisen
and been decided in Scotland before, and your
Lordships are asked by the appellant to reverse
that decision pronounced by four of the most
eminent Judges in Scotland, and acted upon for
the last 23 years. The point arises in this way—
Matthew Greenlees, by deed dated the 18th of
February 1835, declared that a provision for his
wife of an annuity of £40 should be accepted by
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her in satisfaction of all terce of lands, half or
third of moveables, and every other claim compe-
tent to her by and through his decease in any
manner of way. The testing clause is conceived
in these words, after the formal introductory
words, and the mention of the fact of subscrip-
tion by Matthew Greenlees, ‘and by me, the said
Janet Brackenridge or Greenlees, in token of my
consent to and approval of the foregoing settle-
ment,” and at the foot her signature is appended.
It was contended that these words introduced
matter foreign to the purpose of a testing clause.
1t was said that the clause should be confined to
the statement of the formalities of execution and
of the fact of execution. The same objection was
urged before the Court of Session in a case deter-
mined in June 1843, and in that case the Lord
Ordinary (Ivory) entertained it for the first time.
That case, my Lords, is hardly distinguishable
from the one now before your Lordships. The
Lord Ordinary stated that he was not aware of
any instance in which the testing clause was made
use of for such a purpose. His interlocutor was
carried to the Inner House and made the subject
of deliberate consideration. The Lord Justice-
Clerk delivered a very long and elaborate judg-
ment, in which Lord Medwyn and Lord Meadow-
bank concurred, and Lord Moncreiff considered
the objection of the Lord Ordinary a mere at-
tempt to introduce a doubt where no doubt had
previously existed. The whole objection is rested
on a radical error. The testing clause is by the
law of Scotland a part of the deed, and if that is
so, then it is as much in the body of the deed as
any other part of it. The statutes of 1574 and
1681 are quite in accordance with that view. If
that is so, my Lords, the whole objection falls.
There can be nothing more dangerous than in a
question concerning the proper form of a testing
clause that your Lordships should now reverse
the solemn decision arrived at by the Courts of
Scotland. Infinite mischief would arise were
that decision to be reversed. I think therefore
that your Lordships will not for one moment en-
tertain the idea of departing from it. It is a
satisfaction to be able to say that had I been
called upon to determine this question for the
first time, I would have arrived at the same con-
clusion as that in the present case.”

Lord Cranworth expressed an opinion to the
same effect ; and with reference to the argument
that the case of Joknston was a case of the same
kind, as indicating the express confirmation of
the wife, he says—*‘ That provision was however
not superfluous, because the validity of the con-
sent depended on the provision being remuner-
atory. 'That shadow of an argument therefore
entirely fails.”

Lord Chelmsford also concurred, saying—¢‘1
entirely concur in the opinion of your Lordships.
I may add that from the moment the case was
opened I could not bring my mind to entertain

the slightest doubt on the question. I concur in
the regret expressed by my foble and learned
friend (the Lord Chancellor) that the appellant
did not submit to the four decisions against her
in Scotland, but has proceeded to impose large
expenses on the respondent in defending this ap-
peal. The matter is hardly worthy any observa-
tion. There appear to be three points. The first
is whether Mrs Greenlees is bound by her signa-
ture to the deed of 1831. That she was so bound
is clear from the decision in Joknston v Cold-
streqm ; and though Lord Ivory said the testing
clause must be confined to the immediate objects
of attestation, yet after careful consideration
the Judges came to a different conclusion, and
decided that a consent expressed in a testing
clause was sufficiently binding. There is no
doubt as to the propriety of that decision. In
Leighton v. Russell, and in the present case, not
one of the Judges expressed a doubt of its cor-
rectness. The present decision has been sanc-
tioned by the Sheriff-Substitute, the Sheriff, and
the unanimous decision of the Court of Session,
and under these circumstances it would be a very
dangerous thing to evince a disposition to throw
a doubt upon it, and thereby affect the validity
of many deeds executed on its faith.”

I think it would not be right that your Lord-
ships should disregard a case which received the
sanction of these noble and learned Lords so late
ag 1865, and which had previously received the
sanction of some of the most able Judges of the
Court of Session, and which must have regulated
rights of property for about a quarter of a cen-
tury before the date of your Lordships’ judgment.
If it had been necessary for the decision of this
case, I would have been prepared, as at present
advised, to hold that the declaration introduced
into the testing clause was entitled to receive
effect as part of the settlement of the testator.
But, for the reasons already given, I do not con-
sider that it is necessary for the decision of the
case to determine whether effect can be given to
the declaration in the testing clause or not.

On the whole matter, my Lords, I am therefore
of opinion that the judgment pronounced by the
First Division of the Court of Session should be
reversed, with costs.

Interlocutor appealed from reversed ; cause re-
mitted to the Court of Session to assoilzie the
defenders from the conclusions of the action,
with expenses; respondents ordered to pay to
the appellants the costs of the appeal.
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Kay, Q.C.—J. B. Nicolson. Agents—Simson,
‘Wakefield, & Simson, Solicitors.

Counsel for Respondents (Pursuers)—South-

gate, Q.C.—R. T. Reid. Agent—Charles Bucher,
Solicitor.



